
NEW BRITAIN BOARD OF EDUCATION 
POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING 

APRIL 22, 2024– 6:00 PM | NEW BRITAIN EDUCATIONAL ADMINISTRATION CENTER 

1



NEW BRITAIN BOARD OF EDUCATION 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

TO: 

DATE: 

RE: 

New Britain Board of Education Members 
Mayor Erin Stewart 
Mr. Mark H. Bernacki, Town and City Clerk 
New Britain Common Council Members 

April 19, 2024 

New Britain Board of Education Committee Meetings

The following Board of Education committee meetings will be held: 

● The New Britain Board of Education Policy Committee will hold a regular meeting on Monday,
April 22, 2024 at 6:00 PM at the New Britain Educational Administration Center, located at 272
Main Street in New Britain, Connecticut.

● The New Britain Board of Education Curriculum Committee will hold a regular meeting on Monday,
April 22, 2024 at 6:15 PM at the New Britain Educational Administration Center, located at 272
Main Street in New Britain, Connecticut.

Members of the public may attend meetings in person or view a live broadcast of the proceedings 
online via the livestream link: 
https://www.csdnb.org/board/ 

The agendas and board packets in their entirety can be found on the Board of Education website: 

https://www.csdnb.org/board/BOE‐2024‐Meetings‐Documents‐Calendar.php 

272 Main Street • P.O. Box 1960 • New Britain, CT 06050-1960 • P (860) 827-2200 • F (860) 612-1527 

WWW.CSDNB.ORG 

2



New Britain Board of Education 
Joseph Listro – President l Barbara Marino – Vice President l Diana Reyes – Secretary  

Anthony Cane| Salvador Escobales | Anthony Kane |Annie S. Parker | Joan Pina l Jose Rivera | Tina Santana 

New Britain Board of Education l Policy Committee Regular Meeting 
April 22, 2024 – 6:00 PM l New Britain Educational Administration Center 

Members of the public may attend meeting in person or view a live broadcast of the proceedings online via the livestream link: 
https://www.csdnb.org/board/ 

1. Call to Order and Opening

A. Meeting Called to Order

2. New Business

A. Review and approve minutes from Policy Committee meeting on March 18, 2024
Submitted by Ms. Aja Edwards l Page 4

B. Board policy review – Electronic payment apps (Paypal, Venmo, CashApp, ect.) for fundraisers 
Submitted by Dr. Tony Gasper l Page 5

C. Board policy review - 5118.00 – Residency/ Registration
Submitted by Dr. Tony Gasper l Page 6

D. Review and discuss audit results from CABE
Submitted by Ms. Barbara Marino l Page 14

E. Board policy review – 5131.911 – Safe School Climate
Submitted by Ms. Keira Soler l Page 38

F. Review proposed policy P6115.3 – Flag (Display)
Submitted by Ms. Barbara Marino l Page 58

3. Closing and Adjournment

A. Other Business as Permitted by Law
B. Adjournment

3

https://www.csdnb.org/board/


New Britain Board of Education  
Joseph Listro – President l Barbara Marino – Vice President l Diana Reyes – Secretary  

Anthony Cane| Salvador Escobales | Anthony Kane |Annie S. Parker | Joan Pina l Jose Rivera | Tina Santana 

New Britain Board of Education l Policy Committee Regular Meeting 
March 18, 2024 – 6:00 PM l New Britain Educational Administration Center 

Members of the public may attend meeting in person or view a live broadcast of the proceedings online via the livestream link: 
https://www.csdnb.org/board/ 

1. Call to Order and Opening

Vice President and Policy Chair, Ms. Barbara Marino called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm 

Board Members Present 
Salvador Escobales*, Anthony Kane*, Joseph Listro, Barbara Marino*, Diana Reyes*, and Tina Santana#* 
*Committee member #Attended remotely

CSDNB Staff Present 

Ms. Amy Anderson, Ms. Kristie Bourdoulous, Ms. Lara Bohlke, Ms. Erin Eatmon, Ms. Aja Edwards, Dr. Anthony Gasper, Ms. 
Maryellen Manning, Ms. Silvia Mayo‐Molina, Mr. Jeff Prokop#, Mr. Tyrone Richardson, Dr. Nicole Sanders, Ms. Lillie Stuart, 
Ms. Terry Turcotte, and Ms. Ivelise Velasquez 

2. New Business

A. Review and approve minutes from Policy Committee meeting on February 20, 2024
Submitted by Ms. Aja Edwards

Mr. Kane motioned to approve minutes from Policy Committee meeting on February 20, 2024, seconded by Ms. Reyes.
Motion carried.

B. Review board policy P6115.3 – Flag (Display)
Submitted by Mr. Joseph Listro

Superintendent Gasper recommended to the board, in order to keep flag inquiries at Board level  rather than
designating the responsibility of what can displayed in schools to the Superintendent, requests should be made 90
days in advance to allow the Board members time to convene.
Board President Joe Listro requested that once the policy has been approved by the Board, the DEI Advisory Council
review it for further insight.

The policy committee recommended to add this item to the regular agenda for the upcoming meeting in April.

3. Closing and Adjournment

A. Other Business as Permitted by Law
B. Adjournment

Ms. Reyes motioned to adjourn at 6:16pm, seconded by Mr. Kane. Motion carried.

4



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Tony Gasper () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on May 6, 2024.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Tony Gasper Staff Presenter: Tony Gasper

Type of Memorandum

Board Policy Review

Background and Purpose/Rationale

N/A

Discussion of possible policy on electronic payment apps (PayPal, Venmo, CashApp, etc.) for fundraisers,
events, etc

Shipman & Goodwin will be present to aid in this discussion. Fundraisers and events (such as retirement
parties) are asked to be promoted and include links to personal payment apps. BOE policy is warranted.

Financial Information

N/A

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Policy Committee on April 22, 2024

5



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Tony Gasper () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on May 6, 2024.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Tony Gasper Staff Presenter: Tony Gasper

Type of Memorandum

Board Policy Review

Background and Purpose/Rationale

5118.00

Review policy allowing non-resident parents to request that their child attend CSDNB
Shipman & Goodwin attorney will be present. Request from staff member. Need for greater detail.

Financial Information

N/A

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Policy Committee on April 22, 2024

5118.00-Residency-Registration - Anthony Gasper.pdf

6

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-LuRHki7CgaIzM5FnMX8Q4SgKymD0V0q/view?usp=drivesdk


Board Policy Statement 
5118.00 - Residency/Registration 

Approved on December 7, 2015

All parents and guardians who have the care of children shall instruct them or cause them to be instructed in 
those courses required by law and taught in the public schools.  Parents or guardians having control of a student 
five years of age and over and under sixteen years of age shall cause such student to attend a public day school 
regularly unless the parents or guardians having control of such student is able to show that the student is 
elsewhere receiving equivalent instruction in the studies taught in the public schools; provided that the parents 
or guardians having control of a student five years of age shall have the option of not sending the student to 
school until the student is six years of age and the parents or guardians of a student six years of age shall have 
the option of not sending the student to school until the student is seven years of age.  Such parents or guardians 
having control shall exercise this option by personally appearing at the school district office and signing an option 
form; the school district shall provide that parents or guardians with information on the educational opportunities 
available within the school system. 

Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-186 directs the Board of Education to provide education for all persons 
residing in New Britain who are five years of age and older and under twenty-one years of age and who have not 
graduated from a high school or vocational school.  The Board is not required in certain circumstances to provide 
educational services for children who have been expelled. 

Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-76d (b)(2) and federal law requires special education to be provided for 
children who have not attained school age but have reached the age of 2.8 years by September 1, or three years 
of age prior to the following September and who have been identified as being in need of special education and 
whose educational potential will be irreparably diminished without special education. 

The school district shall not provide education for any child whose legal residence is another town, state, 
commonwealth or country.  The parents or guardians of a non-resident student may request admission to the 
New Britain Public Schools in writing.  A written request with a statement of the reasons for the request shall be 
signed by the parent or guardian of the student, or by the student if of legal age, and forwarded to the Chief 
Operations Office. If admission is granted into New Britain Public schools to a non-residential student, the Board 
of Education shall inform the parents or guardians of the established tuition rate for the academic year(s) of 
attendance. 

School assignments are made based on the residential address of the parents or guardians and the neighborhood 
school attendance zones as identified by the school district. 

Parents or guardians of students age three years and older, who are residents or in a doubled-up classification 
within the City of New Britain, must register their children at Central Registration regardless if the student attends 

7



a vocational school, magnet school, participates in the Choice Program, or attends a school within this district. 
Parents or guardians will bring the required documentation to Central Registration which is located at 183 Steele 
Street, in the back of Slade Middle School.  

Please refer to the administrative procedures for this policy for more detailed information on admission to the 
Consolidated School District of New Britain, the registration process and residency requirements. 

Legal References/Citations 
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-76d(b)(2) and Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, 20 U.S.C. §1400 et seq. 
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-15c Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-76a to 10-76h Special Education 
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-184 Duties of Parents amended 
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-186 Duties of Local and Regional Boards of Education 
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-233a to 10-233c Suspension of Pupils 
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-233d Student Discipline/Expulsion 
Public Act No. 87-179 School Accommodations 
Connecticut State Plan, revised August 1991 
Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance Act. 
Subtitle VII-B (Sections 721-722) as amended November 29, 1990 
Objective 1 & 7: Current Status Regulations 
Objective 6:6:3 Residency Requirements 

8



Administrative Procedure 
5118.00 - Residency/Registration 

Approved on December 7, 2015

The Assistant Superintendent for Business and Operations or his designee shall receive and act upon the 
application in accordance with the above policy. Any questioned application shall be reviewed and resolved by 
the Superintendent of Schools with appeal to the Board of Education. 

I. General Considerations

A. A permanent resident shall be defined as one who resided in New Britain and who has an intention to
remain with the District. Therefore, a student who would be residing in New Britain for a short period of
time would not be considered a permanent resident. Final determination regarding residency will be made
by the Superintendent of Schools or designee.

B. Once the appropriate documentation has been completed (see registration), children residing with
relatives or non-relatives when it is the intention of all concerned that such residence is to be permanent
and provided without pay and not for the purpose of obtaining school accommodation, shall be entitled
to all free school privileges accorded to resident children in the school where they reside.

C. The school district is not required to provide education for any child whose legal residence is another
town, state or country provided that a child residing in a dwelling located in both New Britain and another
town shall be considered to be a resident of New Britain and may attend the District’s schools.

D. When the student in question is an emancipated minor, he/she may be requested to complete all forms
and provide all necessary information.

E. When a non-special education student is placed by a state agency in a foster home or other placement in
New Britain, educational services will be provided. The Director of Pupil Services will be notified by the
state agency and a copy of that notification will be forwarded to the school the student will attend.
However, the nexus town shall be responsible for the cost of such educational services, unless otherwise
provided by law.

F. If a regular education student is placed by the Department of Children and Families (DCF) in foster
placement in New Britain and at any time requires referral to special education, the nexus town
(community responsible for the child, usually being the town in which the parent/guardian reside) shall
be notified.

G. Note: if any outside agency makes a placement of a special education student in New Britain, and the legal
guardian(s) live in another community, the community is responsible for determining the program, the

9



cost of the program, and shall convene the PPT to determine the appropriate program for the student. 
The school district may cooperate with the responsible school district space is available and all other 
factors are acceptable.  

H. A situation may arise where a student is in the last quarter of a given school year, or is a senior at the high
school and has attended New Britain High School since grade 9, and a request is made for the student to
finish the year in New Britain even though the student has moved to another community. The Assistant
Superintendent for Instruction may approve the request of the parent agrees to provide transportation
to and from school and the student’s continuation in the school is recommended by the school
administration.

I. If any child or emancipated youth is denied accommodations by the school district on the basis of
residency, he/she may request a hearing by the Board of Education. The parent, guardian, child, or
emancipated youth shall have the burden of establishing residency. At the time the parent, guardian or
child, if emancipated, is informed of the school  district’s intention to deny accommodation, such
individual shall also be informed of the school district’s intention to deny accommodation, such individual
shall also be informed of his/her right to a hearing before the Board of Education. The decision of the
Board of Education may be appealed to the Stated Board of Education’s impartial hearing board. If, at the
time the child is denied accommodation on the basis of residency, the child is enrolled in the school
district, the child may continue in attendance, upon request, pending the hearing decision.

II. Eligibility
When an issue arises concerning eligibility of a student to receive educational programming in New Britain due
to issues concerning residency, the following administrative procedure should be followed:

A. Inquire of the parent/guardian, the child if emancipated, or the person with whom the child is residing if
the request is being made for the sole purpose of obtaining an education in New Britain. If the answer is
in the affirmative, the request is to be immediately denied and the individual advised of his/her rights.

B. Inquire of the parent/guardian, the child if emancipated, or the person with whom the child is residing if
the request for enrollment is due to temporary residency. If the answer is affirmative, the request is to be
immediately denied and the individual will be advised of his/her rights.

C. Inquire of the parent/guardian, the child if emancipated, or the person with whom the child is residing if
the parent or legal guardian is providing payment for the support of the child to the family where the
student will be residing. If the answer is yes, the request is to be immediately denied and the individual
will be advised of his/her rights.

D. If a response is provided which indicates other factors are the cause of the request for education in the
district schools, the residence certifications for enrollment (affidavit of parent and affidavit of in loco
parentis) are to be given to the individual (parent, guardian, child if emancipated, or the person with who,
the child is residing) making the request. The student in question will be enrolled when the residence
certification for enrollment has been properly completed and submitted to the building administrator. All
other records, such as medical and educational records, must also be in place prior to enrollment.

E. If, during the course of the student’s enrollment there is a reason to believe or suspect that the current
affidavit of compliance with the District residency requirement is no longer accurate, written notification
of such evidence will be submitted to the Superintendent of Schools or designee for further study and
possible action. The District may request further documentation to support or prove the student’s 

10



residence. The person with whom the child is residing shall be notified of the possible actions and, if 
disenrolled, informed of their right to appeal. The student shall be allowed to remain in the District until 
the local and/or State hearing process have been concluded under Conn. Gen. Stat. §10-186. 

III. General Considerations
The Superintendent of Schools is authorized to accept non-resident students on a differentiated tuition basis for
attendance in the New Britain elementary and secondary schools annually. Tuition fees will be set by the
Superintendent and provided to the Board of Education. Admissions are dependent on space available and must
not require additional staff. The Superintendent shall be responsible for determining the school assignment of
tuition students. Such admissions must be reviewed by the Superintendent annually. It is the intent of the District
to maintain continuity in enrollment for those students whenever possible, subject to the conditions listed above.
Parents are responsible for the transportation of students attending school as tuition students.

IV. Hearing Process
An adjudicative review embodying due process of law is available to any parent, guardian, emancipated minor,
pupil eighteen years of age or older, or an agent or officer charged with the enforcement of the laws concerning
attendance at school in the event a pupil is denied school accommodations, including a denial based on an issue
of residency. The parent whose child is denied school accommodations may initiate a review in the form of a
hearing before the New Britain Board of Education. A hearing must be held within 10 days of the request for a
hearing. The Board of Education must render a decision within 10 days after the conclusion of the hearing. If the
parent is aggrieved by the decision of the New Britain Board of Education, then an appeal may be filed with the
State Board of Education. The entire appellate process including the conduct of a hearing, and the rendering of a
decision, must be completed within forty-five (45) calendar days unless otherwise provided through an extension
of time.

V. Registration

A. Elementary and Middle School Registration

a. Determine new address (verify district school child should be attending)

b. Determine where student previously resided and/or where he/she is coming from (have
parent/guardian sign release of records form if needed or necessary)

c. Determine whether child has previously attended district schools

d. Determine if child is mono-lingual, bi-lingual, English or foreign speaking

e. Determine who child lives with

f. Proof of age required (birth certificate) (copy for file)

g. Immunization record completed (checked by district physician or school nurse)

h. Physical examination (Middle School)

i. Residency documentation
i. Bill of sale

ii. Rental agreement 11



j. Utility bill (with date)

k. Forms for Parent/Guardian to Complete
i. 064-2114-1 Student Census

ii. State of CT – Health Assessment Record (blue form to be completed by parent & physician)
iii. District Free/Reduced Lunch Waiver application

l. Forms/Information to be provided to parent/guardian by district school
i. Board of Education/school policies on attendance/discipline

ii. Provide District calendar, school time schedule
iii. Classroom assignment
iv. Bus route number (if qualified and available)

m. Other school office procedures
i. Assign identification number and enter data into District computer

ii. Notify lunch/cafeteria personnel
iii. Type student record
iv. Notify teacher

B. High School Registration
Please note: It is the responsibility of the registering student (and parent) to produce, at registration time,
a copy of the registering student’s:

a. Transcript – this must include a complete record of high school courses taken to date and credits
earned beginning with grade 9. Students entering grade 9 for the first time must present written
proof of completion of grade 8.

b. Health record – registering student must present a complete health record with proof of
immunizations. This is required by State law. All incoming health records must be reviewed by the
school physician/school nurse before students are allowed to attend school.

c. Residency documentation
i. Bill of sale

ii. Rental agreement
iii. Utility bill (with date)

d. Language assessment – citizenship status, check with ESL/bilingual office.

e. New Britain Board of Education census form completed.

f. Elective blank – to be filled out by the registering student with appropriate course numbers and
course names listed. A minimum of 5.5 academic credits must be taken for each academic year.

g. Note: Schedule subject to change based upon verification of incoming record.

12



VI. Transfer of Student Records

A. Whenever a student transfers to another Connecticut public school district, the following student records
shall be forwarded upon written notification of the student’s enrollment from the other district

a. The student’s Mandatory Permanent Student Record or a copy thereof. The original or a copy shall
be retained by this district.

b. The student’s entire mandatory interim student record.

B. The student’s records shall be transferred to the new school district no later than ten (10) days after
receipt of such notification.

C. Whenever a student transfers to a new school district in another state or to a private school, the district
shall transfer the student’s mandatory permanent student record upon receipt of a written request.

D. Permitted student records may be forwarded.

E. Student records shall not be withheld from the requesting district because of nay charges or fees owed
by the student or the student’s parent or guardian.

F. All student records shall be updated prior to transfer.

G. Parent notification

a. If a student’s parent/guardian did not give authorization for the transfer of such records, the
District shall sent notification of the transfer to the parent/guardian at the same time it transfers
the records.

b. If the transfer is within-state transfer, the receiving school shall notify the parents of the record
transfer.

c. If the student transfers out-of state, the custodian of student records shall notify the parents or
guardian at their last known address of the rights accorded them. (34 C.F.R. 99.34 disclosure to
other agencies or institutions)

d. The notification shall include a statement of the parent’s or guardian’s right to review, challenge,
and receive a copy of the student record, if desired.

13



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Tony Gasper () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on May 6, 2024.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Tony Gasper Staff Presenter: Tony Gasper

Type of Memorandum

Board Policy Review

Background and Purpose/Rationale

N/A.

Review the report from CABE policy audit
Begin process of addressing mandated and recommended policies that are absent or in need of review.

Financial Information

N/A

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Policy Committee on April 22, 2024

CABE Policy Audit - 2024 - Anthony Gasper.pdf

14

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WSKTbUbAMvWMHvhgh1eBqi9lb2Vmtrsd/view?usp=drivesdk


15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Keira Soler () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on May 6, 2024.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Tyrone Richardson Staff Presenter: Keira Soler

Type of Memorandum

Board Policy Review

Background and Purpose/Rationale

5131.911 - Safe School Climate

The CSDNB bullying policy has been revised in accordance with recent changes in legislation. These
modifications reflect our commitment to providing a safe and supportive learning environment for all
students. The revisions include updated definitions of bullying behavior, clearer reporting procedures
and prevention and intervention strategies. It is imperative that all staff members familiarize themselves
with the updated policy and ensure its implementation across all schools. By aligning our practices with
the latest legislative standards, we reaffirm our dedication to fostering a culture of respect and inclusivity
within our educational community.

The CSDNB bullying policy has been revised in accordance with recent changes in legislation. The
revisions include updated definitions of bullying behavior, clearer reporting procedures and prevention
and intervention strategies.

Financial Information

N/A

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Policy Committee on April 22, 2024

5131.911-Safe-School-Climate Revised 2024 (1) - Keira Soler.pdf, 5131.911-Safe-School-Climate (1) 12.19.2011 Marked Up (1) - Keira Soler.pdf,
5131.911-Safe-School-Climate (1) 12.19.2011 (1) - Keira Soler.pdf

38

https://drive.google.com/file/d/17XMRl7dCJbf2ZMOO2l4FFm0gLBqdRdH7/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1tK59mTau4zvyNlAO_M-JhoE59x8K-5sM/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1PcRCczixKMI3Q9FL1SEZCd-weF0TZsba/view?usp=drivesdk


Board Policy Statement 
5131.911 - Safe School Climate 
Approved on December 19, 2011

The New Britain Board of Education is committed to creating and maintaining an educational environment free 
from bullying, harassment and discrimination.  All students have a fundamental right to attend school in a safe 
and orderly environment in which they can learn and be free from fear.  All students and adults have a 
responsibility to foster a positive educational environment. 

In accordance with state law and the Board’s Safe School Climate Plan, the Board expressly prohibits any form of 
bullying behavior on school grounds: at a school-sponsored or school-related activity, function or program, 
whether on or off school grounds: at a school bus stop: on a school bus or other vehicle owned, leased or used 
by a local or regional board of education; or through the use of an electronic device or an electronic mobile device 
owned, leased or used by the Board of Education. 

The Board also prohibits any form of bullying behavior outside of the school setting if such bullying (i) creates a 
hostile environment at school for the student against whom such bullying was directed, (ii) infringes on the rights 
of the student against whom such bullying was directed at school, or (iii) substantially disrupts the education 
process or the orderly operation of a school.  Discrimination and/or retaliation against an individual who reports 
or assists in the investigation of an act of bullying is likewise prohibited. 

Students who engage in bullying behavior shall be subject to school discipline, up to and including expulsion, in 
accordance with the Board’s policies on student discipline, suspension and expulsion, and consistent with state 
and federal law. 

For purposes of this policy, “Bullying” means repeated use by one or more students of a written, verbal or 
electronic communication, such as cyberbullying, or a physical act or gesture directed at another student 
attending school in the same school district that:  

 Causes physical or emotional harm to such student or damage to such student’s property

 Places such student in reasonable fear of harm to himself or herself, or of damage to his or her property

 Creates a hostile environment at school for such student

 Infringes on the rights of such students at school, or,

 Substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school.

Bullying shall include, but not be limited to, a written, verbal or electronic communication or physical act or 
gesture based on any actual or perceived differentiating characteristics, such as race, color, religion, ancestry, 
national origin, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression, socioeconomic status, academic 

39



status, physical appearance, or mental, physical, developmental or sensory disability, or by association with an 
individual or group who has or is perceived to have one or more of such characteristics.   

For purposes of this policy, “Cyberbullying” means any act of bullying through the use of the Internet, interactive 
and digital technologies, cellular mobile telephone or other mobile electronic devices or any electronic 
communications. 

Consistent with the requirements under state law, the New Britain Board of Education authorizes the 
Superintendent or his/her designee(s), along with the Safe School Climate Coordinator, to be responsible for 
developing and implementing a Safe School Climate Plan in furtherance of this policy.  As provided by state law, 
such Safe School Climate Plan shall: 

1. Enable students to anonymously report acts of bullying to school employees and  require students and
the   parents or guardians of students to be notified annually of  the process by which students make
reports

2. Enable the parents or guardians of students to file written reports of suspected bullying

3. Require school employees who witness acts of bullying or receive reports of bullying to orally notify the
Safe School Climate Specialist. or another school administrator if the Safe School Climate Specialist is
unavailable, not later than one school day after such school employee witnesses or receives a report of
bullying, and to file a written report not later than two school days after making such oral report

4. Require the Safe School Climate Specialist to investigate or supervise the investigation of all reports of
bullying and ensure that such investigation is completed  promptly after receipt of any written reports
made under this section

5. Require the Safe School Climate Specialist to review any anonymous reports, except that no disciplinary
action shall be taken solely on the basis of an anonymous report

6. Include a prevention and intervention strategy for school employees to deal with bullying

7. Provide for the inclusion of language in student codes of conduct concerning bullying

8. Require each school to notify the parents or guardians of students who commit any verified acts of bullying
and the parents or guardians of students against whom  such acts were directed not later than forty-eight
hours after the completion of the investigation

9. Require each school to invite the parents or guardians of a student who commit any verified act of bullying
to invite the parents or guardians of the student against whom such act was directed to a meeting to
communicate to such parents or guardians the measures being taken by the school to ensure the safety
of the student against whom such act was directed and to prevent further acts of bullying

10. Establish a procedure for each school to document and maintain records relating to  reports and
investigations of bullying in such school and to maintain a list of the number of verified acts of bullying in
such school and make such list available for  public inspection, and annually report such number to the
Department of Education and in such manner as prescribed by the Commissioner of Education

40



11. Direct the development of case-by-case interventions for addressing repeated incidents of bullying against
a single individual or recurrently perpetrated bullying incidents by the same individual that may include
both counseling and discipline

12. Prohibit discrimination and retaliation against an individual who reports or assists in the investigation of
an act of bullying

13. Direct the development of student safety support plans for students against whom an act of bullying was
directed that address safety measures the school will take to protect such students against further acts of
bullying;

14. Require the principal of a school, or the principal’s designee, to notify the appropriate local law
enforcement agency when such principal, or the principal’s designee, believes that any acts of bullying
constitute criminal conduct

15. prohibit bullying (A) on school grounds, at a school sponsored or school-related activity, function or
program whether on or off school grounds; at a school bus stop, on a school bus or other vehicle owned,
or leased or used by a local or regional board of education; or through the use of an electronic device or
an electronic mobile device owned, leased or used by the local or regional board of education, and (B)
outside of the school setting if such bullying (i) creates a hostile environment at school for the student
against whom such bullying was directed, (ii) infringes on the rights of the student against whom such
bullying was directed at school, or if (iii) substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly
operation of a school

16. Require, at the beginning of each school year, each school to provide all school employees with a written
or electronic copy of the school district’s Safe School Climate Plan

17. Require that all school employees annually complete the training described in Conn. Gen. Stat. §10-220a.

The notification required pursuant to subdivision (8) (above) and the invitation required pursuant to subdivision 
(9) (above) shall include a description of the response of school employees to such acts and any consequences
that may result from the commission of further acts of bullying.  Any information provided under this policy or
accompanying the Safe School Climate Plan shall be provided in accordance with the confidentiality restrictions
imposed under the Family Educational Rights Privacy Act (“FERPA”) and the district’s Confidentiality and Access
to Student Information policy and regulations.

The Administrative Procedure regarding Safe School Climate shall follow the Administrative Procedure for Policy 
5131.00 - Student Discipline Code.  

Legal References/Citations 
Public Act 11-232, An Act concerning the Strengthening of School Bullying Laws 
Conn. Gen. Stat.  10-145a 
Conn. Gen. Stat.  10-145o 
Conn. Gen. Stat.  10-220a 
Conn. Gen. Stat.  § 10-222d 
Conn. Gen. Stat.  10-222g 
Conn. Gen. Stat.  10-222h 
Conn. Gen. Stat.  §§ 10-233a through 10-233f 

41



Board Policy Statement
5131.911 - Safe School Climate

Approved on December 19, 2011 TBD

The New Britain Board of Education (Board) is committed to creating and maintaining an educational
environment free from bullying, harassment and discrimination. All students have a fundamental right to attend
school in a safe and orderly environment in which they can learn and be free from fear. All students and adults
have a responsibility to foster a positive educational environment.

In accordance with state law and the Board’s Safe School Climate Plan, the Board expressly prohibits any form of
bullying behavior on school grounds: at a school-sponsored or school-related activity, function or program,
whether on or off school grounds: at a school bus stop: on a school bus or other vehicle owned, leased or used
by a local or regional board of education, or through the use of an electronic device including or an electronic
mobile devices owned, leased or used by the Board of Education.

The Board also prohibits any form of bullying behavior outside of the school setting if such bullying (i) creates a
hostile environment at school for the student against whom such bullying was directed, (ii) infringes on the
rights of the student against whom such bullying was directed at school, or (iii) substantially disrupts the
education process or the orderly operation of a school. Discrimination and/or retaliation against an individual
who reports or assists in the investigation of an act of bullying is likewise prohibited.

Students who engage in bullying behavior shall be subject to school discipline, up to and including expulsion, in
accordance with the Board’s policies on student discipline, suspension and expulsion, and consistent with state
and federal law.

Furthermore, this policy will support and promote the development of restorative action plans that will create
and sustain safe and equitable learning environments. For the school year commencing July 1, 2025, the
Board must adopt a restorative practices response policy to be implemented by school employees for
incidents of challenging behavior or student conflict that are nonviolent and do not constitute a crime.

For purposes of this policy, “Bullying” means repeated use by one or more students of a written, verbal or
electronic communication, such as cyberbullying, or a physical act or gesture directed at another student
attending school in the same school district that: unwanted and aggressive behavior among children in grades
kindergarten to twelve, inclusive, that involves a real or perceived power imbalance.

· Causes physical or emotional harm to such student or damage to such student’s property
· Places such student in reasonable fear of harm to himself or herself, or of damage to his or her property

42



· Creates a hostile environment at school for such student
· Infringes on the rights of such students at school, or,
· Substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school.

Bullying shall include, but not be limited to, a written, verbal or electronic communication or physical act or
gesture based on any actual or perceived differentiating characteristics, such as race, color, religion, ancestry,
national origin, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression, socioeconomic status, academic
status, physical appearance, or mental, physical, developmental or sensory disability, or by association with an
individual or group who has or is perceived to have one or more of such characteristics.

For purposes of this policy, “Cyberbullying” means any act of bullying through the use of the Internet,
interactive and digital technologies, cellular mobile telephone or other mobile electronic devices or any
electronic communications.

"Cyberbullying" means any act of bullying through the use of the Internet, interactive and digital technologies,
cellular mobile telephone, or other mobile electronic devices or any electronic communications.

"Teen dating violence" means any act of physical, emotional or sexual abuse, including stalking, harassing,
and threatening that occurs between two students who are currently in or have recently been in a dating
relationship.

"Mobile electronic device" means any hand-held or other portable electronic equipment capable of
providing data communication between two or more individuals, including, but not limited to, a text
messaging device, a paging device, a personal digital assistant, a laptop computer, equipment that is capable
of playing a video game or a digital video disk, or equipment on which digital images are taken or
transmitted.

"Electronic communication" means any transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data, or
intelligence of any nature transmitted in whole or in part by a wire, radio, electromagnetic, photo-electronic
or photo-optical system.

"School environment" means a school-sponsored or school-related activity, function or program, whether on
or off school grounds, including at a school bus stop or on a school bus or other vehicle owned, leased or used
by a local or regional board of education, and may include other activities, functions or programs that occur
outside of a school-sponsored or school-related activity, function or program if bullying at or during such
other activities, functions or programs negatively impacts the school environment.

"Hostile environment" means a situation in which bullying among students is sufficiently severe or pervasive
to alter the conditions of the school climate.

"Outside of the school setting" means at a location, activity, or program that is not school related, or through
the use of an electronic device or a mobile electronic device that is not owned, leased, or used by a local or
regional board of education.

"School employee" means (a) a teacher, substitute teacher, school administrator, school superintendent,
guidance counselor, school counselor, psychologist, social worker, nurse, physician, school paraprofessional,

43



or coach employed by or working in a public elementary, middle or high school; or (b) any other individual
who, in the performance of their duties, has regular contact with students and who provides services to or
on behalf of students enrolled in a public elementary, middle, or high school, pursuant to a contract with the
local or regional board of education.

“School community” means any individuals, groups, businesses, public institutions and nonprofit
organizations that are invested in the welfare and vitality of a public school system and the community in
which it is located, including, but not limited to, students and their families, members of the local or regional
board of education, volunteers at a school and school employees.

"School climate" means the quality and character of school life with a particular focus on the quality of
relationships with the school community, and which is based on patterns of students', parents' and
guardians' and school employees' experiences of school life, including, but not limited to, norms, goals,
values, interpersonal relationships, teaching and learning practices and organizational structures within the
school community.

"School climate survey" means a research-based, validated and developmentally appropriate survey
administered to students, school employees and families of students, in the predominant languages of the
members of the school community, that measures and identifies school climate needs and tracks progress
through a school climate improvement plan.

"School climate improvement plan" means a building-specific plan developed by the school climate
committee, in collaboration with the school climate specialist, using school climate survey data and any other
relevant information, through a process that engages all members of the school community and involves such
members in a series of overlapping systemic improvements, school-wide instructional practices and relational
practices that prevent, identify and respond to challenging behavior, including, but not limited to alleged
bullying and harassment in the school environment.

"Positive sustained school climate" is the foundation for learning and positive youth development and
means:

a. Norms, values, and expectations that support people feeling socially, emotionally, culturally,
racially, intellectually, and physically safe;

b. People who treat one another with dignity and are engaged, respected and solve problems
restoratively;

c. A school community that works collaboratively together to develop, live, and contribute to a shared
school vision;

d. Adults who model and nurture attitudes that emphasize the benefits and satisfaction gained from
learning; and

e. A school community that contributes to the operations of the school and the care of the physical
environment.

"Emotional intelligence" means the ability to:

a. Perceive, recognize and understand emotions in oneself and others;
b. Use emotions to facilitate cognitive activities, including, but not limited to, reasoning, problem

solving and interpersonal communication;
c. Understand and identify emotions; and

44



d. Manage emotions in oneself or others.

"Social and emotional learning" means the process through which children and adults achieve emotional
intelligence through the competencies of self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, relationship
skills and responsible decision-making.

“Challenging behavior” means behavior that negatively impacts school climate or interferes, or is at risk of
interfering, with the learning or safety of a student or the safety of a school employee.

"Restorative practices" means evidence and research-based system-level practices that focus on
a. Building high-quality, constructive relationships among the school community;
b. Holding each student accountable for any challenging behavior, and
c. Ensuring each such student has a role in repairing relationships and reintegrating into the school

community.

Consistent with the requirements under state law, the New Britain Board of Education authorizes the
Superintendent or his/her designee(s), along with the Safe School Climate Coordinator, to be responsible for
developing and implementing a Safe School Climate Plan in furtherance of this policy. As provided by state law,
such Safe School Climate Plan shall:

1. Enable students and parents or guardians to anonymously report acts of bullying to school employees
and require students and the parents or guardians of students to be notified annually of the process by
which students make reports.
To report an incident you can

a. Get a Bullying Incident Reporting Form from the main office; or
b. Scan the QR code found in the main office or district website (csdnb.org); or
c. Complete a form on the district website (csdnb.org) by clicking on the link.

2. Enable the parents or guardians of students to file written reports of suspected bullying Students and
parents/guardians may file written reports of bullying. Written reports of bullying must be reasonably
specific as to the basis for the report, including the time and place of the alleged conduct, the number of
incidents, the target of the suspected bullying and the names of potential witnesses. Such reports shall be
forwarded to the Safe School Climate Specialist for review and actions consistent with this plan.

3. Require school employees who witness acts of bullying or receive reports of bullying to orally notify the
Safe School Climate Specialist. or another school administrator if the Safe School Climate Specialist is
unavailable, not later than one school day after such school employee witnesses or receives a report of
bullying, and to file a written report not later than two school days after making such oral report
Students may make anonymous reports of bullying to any school employee, but are strongly
encouraged to go directly to their school counselor or a building administrator. A student may also
request anonymity when making a report, even if the student’s identity is known to the school
employee. In cases where the student requests anonymity the Safe School Climate Specialist or their
designee shall meet with the student (if the student’s identity is known) to review the request for
anonymity and discuss the impact that maintaining the anonymity of the complainant may have on the
investigation and on any possible remedial action. All anonymous reports shall be reviewed and
reasonable action will be taken to address the situation, to the extent such action may be taken that
does not disclose the source of the report, and is consistent with the due process rights of the

45



student(s) alleged to have committed acts of bullying. No disciplinary action shall be taken solely on
the basis of anonymous reports.

4. Require the Safe School Climate Specialist to investigate or supervise the investigation of all reports of
bullying and ensure that such investigation is completed promptly after receipt of any written reports
made under this section Require school employees who witness acts of bullying or receive reports of
bullying to orally notify the Safe School Climate Specialist or another school administrator if the Safe
School Climate Specialist is unavailable. This should happen no later than one school day after such
school employee witnesses or receives a report of bullying. A written report should be filed no later
than two school days after making such oral report.

5. Require the Safe School Climate Specialist to review any anonymous reports, except that no disciplinary
action shall be taken solely on the basis of an anonymous report Require the Safe School Climate
Specialist to investigate or supervise the investigation of all reports of bullying and ensure that such
investigation is completed promptly after receipt of any written reports made under this section.

6. Include a prevention and intervention strategy for school employees to deal with bullying Require the
Safe School Climate Specialist to review any anonymous reports, except that no disciplinary action shall
be taken solely on the basis of an anonymous report.

7. Provide for the inclusion of language in student codes of conduct concerning bullying Include a
prevention and intervention strategy for school employees to deal with bullying. Provide for the
inclusion of language in student codes of conduct concerning bullying.

8. Require each school to notify the parents or guardians of students who commit any verified acts of
bullying and the parents or guardians of students against whom such acts were directed not later than
forty-eight hours after the completion of the investigation

9. Require each school to invite the parents or guardians of a student who commits any verified act of
bullying and to invite the parents or guardians of the student against whom such act was directed to a
meeting to communicate to such parents or guardians the measures being taken by the school to ensure
the safety of the student against whom such act was directed and to prevent further acts of bullying

10. Establish a procedure for each school to document and maintain records relating to reports and
investigations of bullying in such school and to maintain a list of the number of verified acts of bullying in
such school and make such list available for public inspection, and annually report such number to the
Department of Education and in such manner as prescribed by the Commissioner of Education Require
each school to invite the parents or guardians of a student who commits any verified act of bullying to
a meeting, separate and distinct from the meeting required in step (9) above, to discuss specific
interventions undertaken by the school to prevent further acts of bullying.

11. Direct the development of case-by-case interventions for addressing repeated incidents of bullying
against a single individual or recurrently perpetrated bullying incidents by the same individual that may
include both counseling and discipline Establish a procedure for each school to document and maintain
records relating to reports and investigations of bullying in such school and to maintain a list of the

46



number of verified acts of bullying in such school and make such list available for public inspection,
and annually report such number to the Department of Education and in such manner as prescribed
by the Commissioner of Education.

12. Prohibit discrimination and retaliation against an individual who reports or assists in the investigation of
an act of bullying Direct the development of case-by-case interventions for addressing repeated
incidents of bullying against a single individual or recurrently perpetrated bullying incidents by the
same individual that may include both counseling and discipline.

13. Direct the development of student safety support plans for students against whom an act of bullying was
directed that address safety measures the school will take to protect such students against further acts of
bullying; Prohibit discrimination and retaliation against an individual who reports or assists in the
investigation of an act of bullying.

14. Require the principal of a school, or the principal’s designee, to notify the appropriate local law
enforcement agency when such principal, or the principal’s designee, believes that any acts of bullying
constitute criminal conduct Direct the development of student safety support plans for students against
whom an act of bullying was directed that address safety measures the school will take to protect such
students against further acts of bullying.

15. prohibit bullying (A) on school grounds, at a school sponsored or school-related activity, function or
program whether on or off school grounds; at a school bus stop, on a school bus or other vehicle owned,
or leased or used by a local or regional board of education; or through the use of an electronic device or
an electronic mobile device owned, leased or used by the local or regional board of education, and (B)
outside of the school setting if such bullying (i) creates a hostile environment at school for the student
against whom such bullying was directed, (ii) infringes on the rights of the student against whom such
bullying was directed at school, or if (iii) substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly
operation of a school Require the principal of a school, or the principal’s designee, to notify the
appropriate local law enforcement agency when such principal or designee, believes that any acts of
bullying constitute criminal conduct.

16. Require, at the beginning of each school year, each school to provide all school employees with a written
or electronic copy of the school district’s Safe School Climate Plan Prohibit bullying

a. On school grounds, at a school sponsored or school-related activity, function or program
whether on or off school grounds; at a school bus stop, on a school bus or other vehicle owned,
or leased or used by a local or regional board of education; or through the use of an electronic
device or an electronic mobile device owned, leased or used by the local or regional board of
education, and

b. Outside of the school setting if such bullying
i. Creates a hostile environment at school for the student against whom such bullying was

directed,
ii. Infringes on the rights of the student against whom such bullying was directed at school,

or if
iii. Substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school.

47



17. Require that all school employees annually complete the training described in Conn. Gen. Stat. §10-220a.
Require each school, at the beginning of each school year, to provide all school employees with a written or
electronic copy of the school district’s Safe School Climate Plan.

18. Require that all school employees annually complete the training described in Conn. Gen. Stat. §10-220a.

The notification required pursuant to subdivision (8) (above) and the invitation required pursuant to subdivision
(9) (above) shall include a description of the response of school employees to such acts and any consequences
that may result from the commission of further acts of bullying. Any information provided under this policy or
accompanying the Safe School Climate Plan shall be provided in accordance with the confidentiality restrictions
imposed under the Family Educational Rights Privacy Act (“FERPA”) and the district’s Confidentiality and Access
to Student Information policy and regulations.

The Administrative Procedure regarding Safe School Climate shall follow the Administrative Procedure for Policy
5131.00 - Student Discipline Code.

Prevention and Intervention Strategies

The District shall implement, as required by C.G.S. 10-222d, as amended, a prevention and intervention
strategy which may include, but is not limited to:

1. Implementation of a positive behavioral intervention and support process or another evidence-based
model approach for a safe-school climate or for the prevention of bullying and teen dating violence
(grades 7-12) identified by the Department of Education.

2. School rules prohibiting bullying, teen dating violence, harassment, and intimidation and establishing
appropriate consequences for those who engage in such acts.

3. Adequate supervision of outdoor areas, hallways, the lunchroom, and other specific areas where
bullying or teen dating violence (grades 7-12) is likely to occur.

4. Inclusion of grade-appropriate education in bullying and teen dating violence (grades 7-12) and
prevention curricula in kindergarten through high school.

5. Individual intervention with the bully or student (and possibly parent) who commits teen dating
violence, facilitated by school employees.

6. Individual interventions with the student (and possibly parent) against whom the acts of bullying and
teen dating violence are directed, facitated by school employees.

7. School-wide training related to a safe school climate.
8. Culturally competent school-based curriculum focusing on social-emotional learning, self-awareness

and self-regulation.

Legal References/Citations
Public Act 11-232, An Act concerning the Strengthening of School Bullying Laws
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-145a
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-145o
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-220a
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222d
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-222g
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-222h

48



Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 10-233a through 10-233f

49



Board Policy Statement
5131.911 - Safe School Climate

Approved on [Date]

The New Britain Board of Education (Board) is committed to creating and maintaining an educational
environment free from bullying, harassment and discrimination. All students have a fundamental right to attend
school in a safe and orderly environment in which they can learn and be free from fear. All students and adults
have a responsibility to foster a positive educational environment.

In accordance with state law and the Board’s Safe School Climate Plan, the Board expressly prohibits any form of
bullying behavior on school grounds or through the use of an electronic device including electronic devices
owned, leased, or used by the Board of Education.

The Board also prohibits any form of bullying behavior outside of the school setting if such bullying (i) creates a
hostile environment at school for the student against whom such bullying was directed, (ii) infringes on the
rights of the student against whom such bullying was directed at school, or (iii) substantially disrupts the
education process or the orderly operation of a school. Discrimination and/or retaliation against an individual
who reports or assists in the investigation of an act of bullying is likewise prohibited.

Students who engage in bullying behavior shall be subject to school discipline, up to and including expulsion, in
accordance with the Board’s policies on student discipline, suspension and expulsion, and consistent with state
and federal law.

Furthermore, this policy will support and promote the development of restorative action plans that will create
and sustain safe and equitable learning environments. For the school year commencing July 1, 2025, the Board
must adopt a restorative practices response policy to be implemented by school employees for incidents of
challenging behavior or student conflict that are nonviolent and do not constitute a crime.

For purposes of this policy, “Bullying” means unwanted and aggressive behavior among children in grades
kindergarten to twelve, inclusive, that involves a real or perceived power imbalance.

"Cyberbullying" means any act of bullying through the use of the Internet, interactive and digital technologies,
cellular mobile telephones, or other mobile electronic devices or any electronic communications.

"Teen dating violence" means any act of physical, emotional or sexual abuse, including stalking, harassing, and
threatening that occurs between two students who are currently in or have recently been in a dating
relationship.

50



"Mobile electronic device" means any hand-held or other portable electronic equipment capable of providing
data communication between two or more individuals, including, but not limited to, a text messaging device, a
paging device, a personal digital assistant, a laptop computer, equipment that is capable of playing a video
game or a digital video disk, or equipment on which digital images are taken or transmitted.

"Electronic communication" means any transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data, or intelligence
of any nature transmitted in whole or in part by a wire, radio, electromagnetic, photo-electronic or
photo-optical system.

"School environment" means a school-sponsored or school-related activity, function or program, whether on or
off school grounds, including at a school bus stop or on a school bus or other vehicle owned, leased or used by a
local or regional board of education, and may include other activities, functions or programs that occur outside
of a school-sponsored or school-related activity, function or program if bullying at or during such other activities,
functions or programs negatively impact the school environment.

"School employee" means (a) a teacher, substitute teacher, school administrator, school superintendent,
guidance counselor, school counselor, psychologist, social worker, nurse, physician, school paraprofessional, or
coach employed by a local or regional board of education or working in a public elementary, middle or high
school; or (b) any other individual who, in the performance of their duties, has regular contact with students
and who provides services to or on behalf of students enrolled in a public elementary, middle, or high school,
pursuant to a contract with the local or regional board of education.

“School community” means any individuals, groups, businesses, public institutions and nonprofit organizations
that are invested in the welfare and vitality of a public school system and the community in which it is located,
including, but not limited to, students and their families, members of the local or regional board of education,
volunteers at a school and school employees.

"School climate" means the quality and character of school life with a particular focus on the quality of
relationships with the school community, and which is based on patterns of students', parents' and guardians'
and school employees' experiences of school life, including, but not limited to, norms, goals, values,
interpersonal relationships, teaching and learning practices and organizational structures within the school
community.

"School climate survey" means a research-based, validated and developmentally appropriate survey administered
to students, school employees and families of students, in the predominant languages of the members of the
school community, that measures and identifies school climate needs and tracks progress through a school
climate improvement plan.

"School climate improvement plan" means a building-specific plan developed by the school climate committee,
in collaboration with the school climate specialist, using school climate survey data and any other relevant
information, through a process that engages all members of the school community and involves such members
in a series of overlapping systemic improvements, school-wide instructional practices and relational practices
that prevent, identify and respond to challenging behavior, including, but not limited to alleged bullying and
harassment in the school environment.

"Positive sustained school climate" is the foundation for learning and positive youth development and means

51



a. Norms, values, and expectations that support people feeling socially, emotionally, culturally, racially,
intellectually, and physically safe;

b. People who treat one another with dignity and are engaged, respected and solve problems restoratively;
c. A school community that works collaboratively together to develop, live, and contribute to a shared school

vision;
d. Adults who model and nurture attitudes that emphasize the benefits and satisfaction gained from

learning; and
e. A school community that contributes to the operations of the school and the care of the physical

environment.

"Emotional intelligence" means the ability to
a. Perceive, recognize and understand emotions in oneself or others;
b. Use emotions to facilitate cognitive activities, including, but not limited to, reasoning, problem solving

and interpersonal communication;
c. Understand and identify emotions; and
d. Manage emotions in oneself or others.

"Social and emotional learning" means the process through which children and adults achieve emotional
intelligence through the competencies of self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, relationship skills
and responsible decision-making.

“Challenging behavior” means behavior that negatively impacts school climate or interferes, or is at risk of
interfering, with the learning or safety of a student or the safety of a school employee.

"Restorative practices" means evidence and research-based system-level practices that focus on
a. building high-quality, constructive relationships among the school community,
b. holding each student accountable for any challenging behavior, and
c. ensuring each such student has a role in repairing relationships and reintegrating into the school

community.

Consistent with the requirements under state law, the New Britain Board of Education authorizes the
Superintendent or his/her designee(s), along with the Safe School Climate Coordinator, to be responsible for
developing and implementing a Safe School Climate Plan in furtherance of this policy. As provided by state law,
such Safe School Climate Plan shall:

1. Enable students and parents or guardians to anonymously report acts of bullying to school employees
and require students and parents or guardians of students to be notified annually of the process by which
students make reports.

To report an incident you can:

a. Get a Bullying Incident Reporting Form from the main office;
b. Scan the QR code found in the main office or district website (csdnb.org); or
c. Complete a form on the district website (csdnb.org) by clicking on the link.

2. Students and parents/guardians may file written reports of bullying. Written reports of bullying must be

52



reasonably specific as to the basis for the report, including the time and place of the alleged conduct, the
number of incidents, the target of the suspected bullying and the names of potential witnesses. Such
reports shall be forwarded to the Safe School Climate Specialist for review and actions consistent with
this plan.

3. Students may make anonymous reports of bullying to any school employee, but are strongly encouraged
to go directly to their school counselor or a building administrator. A student may also request anonymity
when making a report, even if the student’s identity is known to the school employee. In cases where the
student requests anonymity the Safe School Climate Specialist or their designee shall meet with the
student (if the student’s identity is known) to review the request for anonymity and discuss the impact
that maintaining the anonymity of the complainant may have on the investigation and on any possible
remedial action. All anonymous reports shall be reviewed and reasonable action will be taken to address
the situation, to the extent such action may be taken that does not disclose the source of the report, and
is consistent with the due process rights of the student(s) alleged to have committed acts of bullying. No
disciplinary action shall be taken solely on the basis of anonymous reports.

4. Require school employees who witness acts of bullying or receive reports of bullying to orally notify the
Safe School Climate Specialist or another school administrator if the Safe School Climate Specialist is
unavailable. This should happen no later than one school day after such school employee witnesses or
receives a report of bullying. A written report should be filed no later than two school days after making
such oral report.

5. Require the Safe School Climate Specialist to investigate or supervise the investigation of all reports of
bullying and ensure that such investigation is completed promptly after receipt of any written reports
made under this section.

6. Require the Safe School Climate Specialist to review any anonymous reports, except that no disciplinary
action shall be taken solely on the basis of an anonymous report.

7. Include a prevention and intervention strategy for school employees to deal with bullying. Provide for the
inclusion of language in student codes of conduct concerning bullying.

8. Require each school to notify the parents or guardians of students who commit any verified acts of
bullying and the parents or guardians of students against whom such acts were directed not later than
forty-eight hours after the completion of the investigation.

9. Require each school to invite the parents or guardians of a student who commits any verified act of
bullying and the parents or guardians of the students against whom such act was directed to a meeting to
communicate to such parents or guardians the measures being taken by the school to ensure the safety
of the student against whom such act was directed and to prevent further acts of bullying.

10. Require each school to invite the parents or guardians of a student who commits any verified act of
bullying to a meeting, separate and distinct from the meeting required in step (9) above, to discuss
specific interventions undertaken by the school to prevent further acts of bullying.

53



11. Establish a procedure for each school to document and maintain records relating to reports and
investigations of bullying in such school and to maintain a list of the number of verified acts of bullying in
such school and make such list available for public inspection, and annually report such number to the
Department of Education and in such manner as prescribed by the Commissioner of Education.

12. Direct the development of case-by-case interventions for addressing repeated incidents of bullying
against a single individual or recurrently perpetrated bullying incidents by the same individual that may
include both counseling and discipline.

13. Prohibit discrimination and retaliation against an individual who reports or assists in the investigation of
an act of bullying.

14. Direct the development of student safety support plans for students against whom an act of bullying was
directed that address safety measures the school will take to protect such students against further acts of
bullying.

15. Require the principal of a school, or the principal’s designee, to notify the appropriate local law
enforcement agency when such principal or the designee, believes that any acts of bullying constitute
criminal conduct.

16. Prohibit bullying
a. On school grounds, at a school sponsored or school-related activity, function or program whether on or

off school grounds; at a school bus stop, on a school bus or other vehicle owned, or leased or used by a
local or regional board of education; or through the use of an electronic device or an electronic mobile
device owned, leased or used by the local or regional board of education, and

b. Outside of the school setting if such bullying
i. creates a hostile environment at school for the student against whom such bullying was directed,
ii. infringes on the rights of the student against whom such bullying was directed at school, or if
iii. substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school.

17. Require each school at the beginning of each school year, to provide all school employees with a written
or electronic copy of the school district’s Safe School Climate Plan.

18. Require that all school employees annually complete the training described in Conn. Gen. Stat. §10-220a.

The notification required pursuant to subdivision (8) (above) and the invitation required pursuant to subdivision
(9) (above) shall include a description of the response of school employees to such acts and any consequences
that may result from the commission of further acts of bullying. Any information provided under this policy or
accompanying the Safe School Climate Plan shall be provided in accordance with the confidentiality restrictions
imposed under the Family Educational Rights Privacy Act (“FERPA”) and the district’s Confidentiality and Access
to Student Information policy and regulations.

The Administrative Procedure regarding Safe School Climate shall follow the Administrative Procedure for Policy
5131.00 - Student Discipline Code.

Prevention and Intervention Strategies:

54



The District shall implement, as required by C.G.S. 10-222d, as amended, a prevention and intervention strategy
which may include, but is not limited to:

1. Implementation of a positive behavioral intervention and support process or another evidence-based
model approach for a safe-school climate or for the prevention of bullying and teen dating violence
(grades 7-12) identified by the Department of Education.

2. School rules prohibiting bullying, teen dating violence, harassment, and intimidation and establishing
appropriate consequences for those who engage in such acts.

3. Adequate supervision of outdoor areas, hallways, the lunchroom, and other specific areas where bullying
or teen dating violence (grades 7-12) is likely to occur.

4. Inclusion of grade-appropriate education in bullying and teen dating violence (grades 7-12) and
prevention curricula in kindergarten through high school.

5. Individual intervention with the bully or student (and possibly parent) who commits teen dating violence,
facilitated by school employees.

6. Individual interventions with the student (and possibly parent) against whom the acts of bullying and
teen dating violence are directed, facilitated by school employees.

7. School-wide training related to a safe school climate.
8. Culturally competent school-based curriculum focusing on social-emotional learning, self-awareness and

self-regulation.

Legal References/Citations
Public Act 11-232, An Act concerning the Strengthening of School Bullying Laws
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-145a
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-145o
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-220a
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222d
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-222g
Conn. Gen. Stat. 10-222h
Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 10-233a through 10-233f

55



Student Bullying Complaint Form
Elementary

Date: ________________________

My Name is: ________________________________________________ My Teacher is: ______________________________________________

The person or people showing bullying behavior towards me is/are: _______________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

I am being bullied and this is what I have tried to do:

This problem has happened

Once
More than once
A lot

Describe what happened: ____________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

I did nothing

Walked away

Told them to stop

Ignored it

Told a teacher or another adult
Asked a friend for help
Talked to my parent about it
Requested a mediation

56



BULLYIING INCIDENT REPORTING FORM

Date: ___________________________

Name of student targeted: ________________________________________________ Grade: ________________

Name(s) of alleged aggressor(s) if known: _____________________________________________________________

Name(s) of witness(es) if known: ____________________________________________________________________

Where did the incident(s) happen? Choose all that apply.

On school property
On a school bus

At a school-sponsored activity or
event off school property
On the way to/from school

Online/via technology
Other: _______________

_______________________

What best describes what happened (choose all that apply):

Teasing
Social Exclusion
Retaliation

Threat
Intimidation
Sexual
Harassment/
Inappropriate
touching

Stalking
Physical Violence
Property Damage

Theft
Public Humiliation
Other: ____________

____________________

What did the alleged aggressor(s) say or do? (include dates if possible):

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

Did a physical injury result from this incident?

No Yes, but it did not require
medical attention

Yes, and it required medical attention (Please explain)

_________________________________________________

Is there any additional information you would like to provide? ______________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

Name of Person Reporting Incident (OPTIONAL): ________________________________________________________

Phone number (OPTIONAL): _____________________________ Email (OPTIONAL) :__________________________

Student Parent/Guardian Other: __________________

Signature (optional): _____________________________________________

Directions: If you wish to report a disturbing incident between two or more students, complete this form and return it to the Principal at
the student’s school. Contact the school for additional information or assistance at any time. This form can be completed anonymously
by omitting signature and name.

57



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Tony Gasper () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on May 6, 2024.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Tony Gasper Staff Presenter: Tony Gasper

Type of Memorandum

Board Policy Review

Background and Purpose/Rationale

N/A.

Review proposed policy on flag raising.
Continued work by BOE and Policy Committee

Financial Information

N/A

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Policy Committee on April 22, 2024

4F. DRAFT - Flag Policy - Anthony Gasper.pdf

58

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1dDICmdXh-hGikUFYidAYtrP-M9_Law2J/view?usp=drivesdk


Board Policy Statement  
Flag Raising Policy - DRAFT 

It is the policy of the Board of Education (Board) to correctly honor the flags of the United States, the State of 
Connecticut, and the City of New Britain, as well as Board-approved flags representing a school operated by 
the Board, and ensure a standard of flag display on District property. The American flag should always be 
present when others are flying.  

The Board shall comply with national and state protocols for flag display and etiquette. 

It is the policy of the Board that District flag poles are a forum of government speech, thereby maintaining the 
distinction between government speech and private speech by students and community members.  

All flag requests that meet the criteria will be considered for approval by the Superintendent (or their 
designee). All requests whether accepted or denied must then be reported to the Board at the next regular 
meeting. The criteria outlined in this policy establish minimum standards for a flag request to be considered. 

The Superintendent (or their designee) will only consider requests from District students, school groups, or 
staff when there is sufficient reason to believe that such messaging via the flag will promote student well-
being. Requests will only be considered for individual schools and not District-wide. Any approved flag 
requests must also comply with existing District policies.  

● Requests must be made no later than three (3) weeks before the requested flag-raising date.

● Requests to fly a flag will be submitted to the Superintendent (or their designee) in writing.

● Written requests must include the names of the individual(s) making the request, affiliation with the
school, a proposed time frame for raising and flying the flag, and rationale explaining how the request
aligns with the District’s vision, goals, and well-being of our students and staff.

● If approved, the requestor is responsible for delivering a flag that is in good condition and of
appropriate size, and for retrieving the flag. The dimensions of the flag should be 3 feet in width by 5
feet in length.

● Flags will always comply with the U.S. Flag Code. If ordered, flags may be lowered to comply with the
U.S. Flag Code.

● The Board of Education will not fly flags considered to be inappropriate, offensive, or discriminatory.

59


	00 A - Cover Letter
	00 B - Letter to Clerk 04-22-24
	2a. 03-18-24 Policy Meeting Minutes
	2b. PersonalAccounts
	2c. CABEAudit
	04_03_2024 17_38_49- Tony Gasper Board Policy Review - New
	CABE Policy Audit - 2024 - Anthony Gasper (2).pdf

	2d. SafeSchoolClimate
	Policy for 4_22-- 03_06_2024 17_59_35- Keira Soler Board Policy Review - New

	2e. FlagDisplay
	04_03_2024 17_32_10- Tony Gasper Board Policy Review - New
	4F. DRAFT - Flag Policy - Anthony Gasper

	2f. 5118.00
	04_03_2024 17_20_56- Tony Gasper Board Policy Review - New (1)
	5118.00-Residency-Registration - Anthony Gasper




